
SULLIVAN COUNTY FUNDING CORPORATION 
548 Broadway 

Monticello, New York 12701 
(845) 428-7575 - Voice 
(845) 428-7577 - Fax 

www.scfundingcorp.com 
TTY 711 

 
SPECIAL MEETING NOTICE 

 
TO:  Suzanne Loughlin, Chairperson 

Edward Sykes, Vice Chairman 
Carol Roig, Secretary 
Howard Siegel, Treasurer & Chief Financial Officer 
Scott Smith, Assistant Treasurer 

  Paul Guenther, Member 
  Sean Brooks, Member 
  Philip Vallone, Member 
  Chairman and Members of the Sullivan County Legislature 
  Josh Potosek, Sullivan County Manager 
  John Kiefer, Agency Chief Executive Officer 
  Walter Garigliano, Esq., Agency Counsel 
FROM:  Jennifer Flad, Executive Director 
DATE:  December 7, 2022 
 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that there will be a Special Meeting of the Sullivan County Funding Corporation 
scheduled as follows: 
 
DATE: Monday, December 12, 2022 
TIME: 11:30 AM (Immediately following the Regular Meeting of the County of Sullivan IDA) 
LOCATION: Legislative Committee Room, Sullivan County Government Center, 100 North Street, 
Monticello, New York 
 
This meeting will also be livestreamed on the Sullivan County Funding Corporation’s  
YouTube Channel. 
 
Meeting documents will be posted on the Sullivan County Funding Corporation’s website here. 
 
 
 
 
 

PLEASE SEE REVERSE FOR AGENDA 
 
 
 

http://www.scfundingcorp.com/
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCiGhZ0J1AvVrZkoAcqGcRxw
http://www.scfundingcorp.com/2022-meetings-agendas-minutes-and-resolutions/


SULLIVAN COUNTY FUNDING CORPORATION 
548 Broadway 

Monticello, New York 12701 
(845) 428-7575 - Voice 
(845) 428-7577 - Fax 

www.scfundingcorp.com 
TTY 711 

 
 SPECIAL MEETING MONDAY, DECEMBER 12, 2022 

AGENDA 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
II. ROLL CALL 
III. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 

November 14, 2022 Special Meeting 
IV. BILLS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
V. NEW BUSINESS 

Resolution: Approving Transaction Accounting and Payment to Sullivan County 
Any and All Other Business Before the Board 

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT AND ADJOURN  
## 

http://www.scfundingcorp.com/


 

- 1 - 

Sullivan County Funding Corporation 
548 Broadway 

Monticello, New York 12701 
(845) 428-7575 – telephone 

(845) 428-7577 – fax 
 

 SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
November 14, 2022 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

Chairperson Suzanne Loughlin called to order the special meeting of the Sullivan County Funding 
Corporation at approximately 11:58 AM in the Legislative Committee Room at the Sullivan County 
Government Center, 100 North Street, New York 12701. 
 

II.      ROLL CALL 
Members Present-                       Members Absent-   
Suzanne Loughlin     Paul Guenther* (By telephone) 
Edward Sykes      Sean Brooks 
Howard Siegel        
Carol Roig 
Scott Smith     
Philip Vallone 

                       
Staff Present-                               Staff Absent- 
John Kiefer, Chief Executive Officer   None 
Jennifer Flad, Executive Director    
Julio Garaicoechea, Project Manager 
 

Others Present- 
Walter Garigliano, Agency Counsel 
Ken Walter 

 
 

III.  APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 
 On a motion made by Ms. Roig, and seconded by Mr. Sykes, the Board approved the minutes of the 

October 17, 2022 Special Meeting.   
 
IV.  BILLS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 There were no bills or communications. 
 

V.  NEW BUSINESS 
 On a motion made by Mr. Smith, and seconded by Mr. Sykes, the Board reviewed and discussed a 

resolution authorizing acceptance of the conveyance of real property in the Town of Thompson from 
the County of Sullivan, commonly known as the Communications Tower Parcel (SBL 35.-1-9.1) 
comprising 23.94 acres for the purpose of identifying the best available candidate to purchase the 
subject parcel and develop  same consistent with current or future economic development models for 
that area. Attorney Garigliano read the County of Sullivan Resolution No. 446-22 enacted on October 
20, 2022 authorizing the sale of Real Property at Emerald Corporate Park, Rock Hill, New York. 
Chairperson Loughlin called the motion to question, the Board voted, and the resolution was 
unanimously approved.  

 

VI.  PUBLIC COMMENT AND ADJOURNMENT 
 Chairperson Loughlin asked those present for Public Comment. The Board recognized the comments of 

Ken Walter. On a motion by Mr. Siegel and seconded by Mr. Vallone, the meeting was adjourned at 
approximately 12:01 PM. 

 

 Respectfully submitted: 
 Julio Garaicoechea, Project Manager 



County of Sullivan IDA Fourth Quarter 2022 Management & Administrative Services  $          5,000.00 
Harris Beach PLLC Legal Services 2022 (re: Catskills Food Hub)  $          2,016.00 

 $        7,016.00 

12/12/2022
Date

Sullivan Catskills Regional 
Food Hub, Inc. To maintain bank account balance  $          1,500.00 

 $        1,500.00 

none
 $                       -   

Expenses Approved and Paid Since Last Meeting (11/14/22)

TOTAL

Other Expenses Paid Since Last Meeting (11/14/22)—No Approval Required

TOTAL

SULLIVAN COUNTY FUNDING CORPORATION
548 Broadway Monticello, NY 12701

845-428-7575

Revised Schedule of Payments: December 12, 2022

TOTAL
I certify that the payments listed above were audited by the Board of the SCFC on December 12, 2022 and 
allowed in the amounts shown.  You are hereby authorized and directed to pay each of the claimants the amount 
opposite its name.

Signature

12122022



RESOLUTION 
 

A meeting of the Sullivan County Funding Corporation (“SCFC”) was convened in public 
session on December 12, 2022 at 11:30 a.m. local time at the Sullivan County Government Center, 
100 North Street, Monticello, New York 12701. 

 
 The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Suzanne Loughlin, and, upon the roll being 
called, the following members of the SCFC were: 
 
     PRESENT  ABSENT 
   
 Suzanne Loughlin  [     ]  [     ] 
 Edward T. Sykes  [     ]  [     ] 
 Carol Roig   [     ]  [     ] 
 Howard Siegel   [     ]  [     ] 
 Scott Smith   [     ]  [     ] 
 Paul Guenther                         [     ]  [     ] 
 Sean Brooks   [     ]  [     ] 
 Philip Vallone   [     ]  [     ] 
 
 
 The following persons were also present: 
 Jennifer M. Flad, Executive Director 
 John W. Kiefer, Chief Executive Officer 
 Julio Garaicoechea, Project Manager 
 Walter F. Garigliano, General Counsel 
    
 The following resolution was duly offered by ______________, and seconded by 
______________, to wit: 
 
 Resolution No. __ - 22 
         

RESOLUTION APPROVING TRANSACTION ACCOUNTING  
AND PAYMENT TO SULLIVAN COUNTY 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Sections 402 and 1411 of the Not-For-Profit Corporation Law of 

the State of New York, SCFC was established for certain charitable and public purposes including, 
among other things, relieving and reducing unemployment, promoting and providing for additional 
and maximum employment, bettering and maintaining job opportunities, instructing or training 
individuals to improve or develop their capabilities for such jobs, carrying on scientific research 
for the purpose of aiding a community or geographical area by attracting new industry to the 
community or area or by encouraging the development of, or retention of, an industry in the 
community or area, and lessening the burdens of government and acting in the public interest; and 
 
 



 WHEREAS, real property designated on the Town of Thompson Tax Map as Section 130., 
Block 1, Lot 19 and located along Rose Valley Road in the Village of Monticello, County of 
Sullivan (“County”) and State of New York, was owned by the County (“Landfill Expansion 
Parcel”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, at the time the County acquired the Landfill Expansion Parcel, it was the 
County’s intention to use the property for the expansion of the Sullivan County Landfill; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County capped its landfill; discontinued use of the landfill; and determined 
not to expand the landfill; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the County determined it to be in its best interest to convey the Landfill 
Expansion Parcel to the SCFC for the purposes of attracting developers to the County and the 
property to support economic growth of the County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 3-21, adopted January 14, 2021, the County amended 
Resolution No. 465-20 to authorize a portion of the Landfill Expansion Parcel containing a portion 
of the former Apollo Plaza property upon which there is located a construction and demolition 
debris dump site roughly 2.59 acres in size (“C&D Dump”) be excluded from the parcel to be 
transferred to SCFC; and 
 
 WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 01-21 adopted January 11, 2021, SCFC was authorized to 
accept the conveyance of the Landfill Expansion Parcel so long as the C&D Dump was excluded 
(the Landfill Expansion Parcel excluding the C&D Dump is hereinafter referred to as the 
“Property”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 03-21 adopted April 12, 2021, SCFC authorized the grant 
of an exclusive option to purchase the Property to Cono Cimino (“Cimino”) or his permitted 
assigns and authorized execution of an Option Agreement, Contract of Sale, Right of Entry 
Agreement and related documents; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on or about April 19, 2021, SCFC and Cimino’s permitted assignee Monticello 
Industrial Park LLC (“MIP”) entered into a Right of Entry and Indemnity Agreement and Option 
Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Option Agreement sets forth the following conditions precedent to exercise 
of the option by MIP: 

 
“a) Timely exercise of the Option by Option Holder and payment to SCFC of the 

Contract Deposit of Sixty-Two Thousand Five Hundred and 00/l00 ($62,500.00) 
Dollars upon exercise; 

b) Timely execution by Option Holder of the Purchase Contract; 
c) The grant to Option Holder of land use development approvals for the Project, with 

a minimum estimated investment for infrastructure and one or more buildings to be 
constructed on the Property with an estimated total cost of not less than Two 



Million and 00/l00 ($2,000,000.00) Dollars (inclusive of land cost); 
d) Proof by Option Holder of financial capability to perform the work contemplated 

by the land use development approvals for the Property ….” (collectively, the 
“Conditions to Exercise”); and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Option Period was extended by MIP from April 8, 2022 to July 8, 2022, at 
which time a First Extension Payment in the amount of $30,000 was paid to SCFC; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Option Period was further extended by MIP from July 8, 2022 to October 
7, 2022, at which time a Second Extension Payment in the amount of $30,000 was paid to SCFC; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, all Conditions to Exercise were satisfied and on October 7, 2022, MIP signed 
a Contract of Sale effectively exercising the Option and contemporaneously paid a contract deposit 
in the amount of $62,500; and 
 
 WHEREAS, SCFC transferred the Property to MIP by deed dated December 1, 2022 
(delivered on December 2, 2022); and 
 
 WHEREAS, SCFC agreed to pay the County 99% of the net proceeds from the sale of the 
Property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, SCFC has prepared a detailed accounting (“Transaction Accounting”) of the 
balance due SCFC from MIP and the expenses of SCFC, resulting in an amount due the County 
of $599,183.73, being 99% of the net proceeds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, SCFC staff have requested the SCFC Board by this resolution approve the 
Transaction Accounting and authorize a payment to the County of $599,183.73. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF SCFC AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  The Transaction Accounting as submitted by SCFC staff is hereby approved. 

 
Section 2. SCFC authorizes payment to the County in the amount of $599,183.73, 

representing 99% of the net sale proceeds from the sale of the Property from SCFC 
to MIP. 

 
Section 3. The officers, employees and agents of SCFC are hereby authorized and directed for 

and in the name and on behalf of SCFC to do all acts and things required and to 
effect the purposes of the foregoing resolutions. 

 
  



 The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, 
which resulted as follows: 
 
 Suzanne Loughlin  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Edward T. Sykes  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Carol Roig   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Howard Siegel   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Scott Smith   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Paul Guenther   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Sean Brooks   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Philip Vallone   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 
 The resolution was thereupon duly adopted. 
70330-008v3  



STATE OF NEW YORK : 
              :SS 
COUNTY OF SULLIVAN    : 
 
  I, the undersigned Secretary of the Sullivan County Funding Corporation (“SCFC”), DO 
HEREBY CERTIFY: 
 
 That I have compared the annexed extract of the minutes of the meeting of the SCFC, 
including the resolutions contained therein, held on September 12, 2022, with the original thereof 
on file in my office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of the proceedings of SCFC and 
of such resolutions set forth therein and of the whole of said original insofar as the same related to 
the subject matters therein referred to. 
 
 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the SCFC had due notice of said meeting, 
(ii) pursuant to Sections 103(a) and (c) of the Public Officers Law (Open Meetings Law), said 
meeting was open to the general public and public notice of the time and place of said meeting 
was duly given in accordance with such Sections 103(a) and (c) and 104, (iii) the meeting in all 
respects was duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum present throughout. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand on this 12th day of September, 
2022. 
 
 
 

________________________________________  
Carol Roig, Secretary 

 
 
 


	1_SCFC Notice and Agenda 12122022
	2_11-14-22 SCFC Special Meeting Minutes DRAFT
	3_SCFC Schedule of Payments 12-12-2022
	4_70330-008v3 MIP Resolution

